
 

 

North Devon Council 
Brynsworthy Environment Centre 
Barnstaple 
North Devon   EX31 3NP 
 

K. Miles 

Chief Executive. 
 

 
 

LICENSING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY COMMITTEE 
 
A meeting of the Licensing and Community Safety Committee will be held in the Barum 
Room - Brynsworthy on TUESDAY, 14TH MAY, 2024 at 10.30 am. 
 
(NOTE: A location plan for the Brynsworthy Environment Centre is attached to the 
agenda front pages. For meetings held at Brynsworthy only, you can join the 
meeting virtually via Microsoft Teams. There are also limited spaces to attend the 
meeting in person.  Please check the Council’s website for the latest information 
regarding the arrangements that are in place and the requirement to book a place 
2 working days prior to the meeting. Taking part in meetings (northdevon.gov.uk) 
 
 
 
Members of the Licensing and Community 
Safety Committee 

Councillor York (Chair) 

 
Councillors Biederman, Cann, Denton, Haworth-Booth, Hunt, Jusef, Lethaby, Maskell, 
Milton, Norman, Quinn, Renshaw, Whitehead and Williams 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence   

2.   To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 9 April 2024  
(Pages 5 - 14) 

 (attached). 
 

3.   Items brought forward which in the opinion of the Chair should be considered by 
the meeting as a matter of urgency   

4.   Declarations of Interests   

 Declarations of Interests. (Please telephone the Corporate and Community 
Services team to prepare a form for your signature before the meeting. Interests 
must be re-declared when the item is called. A declaration of interest under the 
Code of Conduct will be a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest, an Other Registrable 
Interest or a Non-Registrable Interest.  If the item directly relates to your interest 
you must declare the interest and leave the room for the item, save in the case of 
Other Registrable Interests or Non-Registrable Interests where you may first 
speak on the item as a member of the public if provision has been made for the 
public to speak.  If the matter does not directly relate to your interest but still 
affects it then you must consider whether you are affected to a greater extent than 

Public Document Pack



 
 

 
2 

 

most people and whether a reasonable person would consider your judgement to 
be clouded, if you are then you must leave the room for the item (although you 
may speak as a member of the public if provision has been made for the public to 
speak) or, if you are not, then you can declare the interest but still take part). 

 

5.   To agree the agenda between Part 'A' and Part 'B' (Confidential Restricted 
Information)   

PART 'A' 

6.   Taxi Rank Review  (Pages 15 - 34) 

 Public Protection Manager to report. 
 

7.   Community Safety Updates   

 Crime Safety Partnership Officer to report. 
 

8.   Explore inclusiveness of Diverse communities   

 Chair to present. 
 

PART 'B' (CONFIDENTIAL RESTRICTED INFORMATION) 

 
 

 

If you have any enquiries about this agenda, please contact Corporate and 
Community Services, telephone 01271 388253 

 
 
 

3.05.24 
 



 
 

 
3 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

North Devon Council protocol on recording/filming at Council meetings 
 
The Council is committed to openness and transparency in its decision-making. 
Recording is permitted at Council meetings that are open to the public. Members of the 
public that attend meetings must be aware that these meetings are open to the public 
and so therefore both individuals and the Council itself have the right to record the 
meeting. The Council understands that some members of the public attending its 
meetings may not wish to be filmed. The Chair of the meeting will make sure any request 
not to be filmed is respected. 
 
The rules that the Council will apply are:  
 

1. The recording must be overt (clearly visible to anyone at the meeting) and must 
not disrupt proceedings. The Council will put signs up at any meeting where we 
know recording is taking place.  

 
2. The Chair of the meeting has absolute discretion to stop or suspend recording if, 

in their opinion, continuing to do so would prejudice proceedings at the meeting or 
if the person recording is in breach of these rules.  

 
3. We will ask for recording to stop if the meeting goes into ‘part B’ where the public 

is excluded for confidentiality reasons. In such a case, the person recording 
should leave the room ensuring all recording equipment is switched off. 

 
4. Any member of the public has the right not to be filmed. We ensure that agendas 

for, and signage at, Council meetings make it clear that recording can take place – 
anyone not wishing to be filmed must advise the Chair at the earliest opportunity 
to allow them to be directed to an area in the room where they will not be caught 
on camera. Subject to paragraphs 1, 2 and 3 above, audio recordings shall be 
permitted at all times during public meetings.  

 
5. The recording should not be edited in a way that could lead to misinterpretation or 

misrepresentation of the proceedings or in a way that ridicules or shows a lack of 
respect for those in the recording. The Council would expect any recording in 
breach of these rules to be removed from public view.  

 
Notes for guidance: 
 
Please contact either our Corporate and Community Services team or our 
Communications team in advance of the meeting you wish to record at so we can make 
all the necessary arrangements for you on the day.  
 
For more information contact the Corporate and Community Services team on 01271 
388253 or email memberservices@northdevon.gov.uk or the Communications Team 
on 01271 388278, email communications@northdevon.gov.uk. 

mailto:memberservices@northdevon.gov.uk
mailto:communications@northdevon.gov.uk


 
 

 
4 

 

 
 
North Devon Council offices at Brynsworthy, the full address is:  
Brynsworthy Environment Centre (BEC), Roundswell,  
Barnstaple, Devon, EX31 3NP. 
 
Sat Nav postcode is EX31 3NS. 
 
At the Roundswell roundabout take the exit onto the B3232, after about ½ mile take the 
first right, BEC is about ½ a mile on the right. 
 
Drive into the site, visitors parking is in front of the main building on the left hand side.  
 
On arrival at the main entrance, please dial 8253 for Corporate and Community Services. 
 
All public meetings held at Brynsworthy Environment Centre are held on the ground floor 
and are accessible through the main entrance to the building or via a ramp located 
adjacent to the main entrance 
 

 
 



 

Licensing and Community Safety Committee - 9 April 2024 
 

1 
 

NORTH DEVON COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of a meeting of Licensing and Community Safety Committee held at Barum 
Room - Brynsworthy on Tuesday, 9th April, 2024 at 10.30 am. 
 
PRESENT: Members: 

 
 Councillor York (Chair). 

 
 Councillors Biederman, Cann, Denton, Haworth-Booth, Lethaby, 

Norman, Quinn and Williams. 
 

 Officers: 
 

 Legal Advisor and Public Protection Manager. 
 

 

1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Hunt and Maskell. 
 
(NOTE: Following the meeting it was noted that the Members below had given their 
apologies via email prior to the meeting: 
 
Councillors Milton and Whitehead. 
  
However, the Clerk who was in attendance at the Committee was not aware of these 
until after the meeting. 
 
Therefore, as a point of clarification, these apologies have been added 
retrospectively to minutes). 
 

2.   TO APPROVE AS A CORRECT RECORD THE MINUTES OF THE 
MEETING HELD ON 19 MARCH 2024 
 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on the 19th March 2024 (circulated 
previously) be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair. 
 

3.   ITEMS BROUGHT FORWARD BY THE CHAIR THAT SHOULD BE 
CONSIDERED AS A MATTER OF URGENCY. 
 

The Chair addressed the Committee and requested Committee’s approval to defer 
item 9 on the agenda to the next meeting of the Committee as she had not had time 
to undertake the piece of work following the previous meeting. 
 
RESOLVED, that item 9 on the agenda be deferred for consideration at the next 
meeting of the Committee on Tuesday 14th May 2024. 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



 
Licensing and Community Safety Committee - 9 April 2024 

 
 

 
2 

 

4.   DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS 
 

There were no declarations of interest announced. 
 

5.   GAMBLING ACT STATEMENT OF LICENSING PRINCIPLES 
REVIEW 
 

The Committee considered a report by the Public Protection Manager (circulated 
previously) regarding the review of Gambling Act Statement of Licensing Principles. 
The Public Protection Manger advised that North Devon Council was under a legal 
obligation to review its Gambling Statement of Licensing Principles on a three yearly 
basis. 
 
She explained that the report sought to consult members of the Licensing and 
Community Safety Committee on a proposed draft revision to the Council’s 
Gambling Statement of Licensing Principles, in which minor variations were sought, 
after which a consultation exercise was proposed to follow. It was further suggested 
that the Council re-consider its stance on whether it should put in place a No Casino 
Resolution, and if so include this as part of any consultation.  
 
The feedback received as a result of the consultation exercise would then be 
considered by the Licensing and Community Safety Committee at its meeting on 10th 
September 2024, prior to a recommendation being made for the adoption of an 
amended Statement of Principles to Strategy and Resources Committee on 4th 
November 2024 for approval with or without the amendment by Full Council on 20th 
November 2024. 
 
She explained that the proposed tracked changes to the Gambling Act 2005 
Statement of Licensing Principles detailed in appendix B were not showing on the 
version that had been published as part of the agenda. So, she uploaded the 
document to the screen for Members to see where those changes were being 
proposed. 
 
She drew the Committee’s attention to the following elements within the report and 
appendices: 
 

 Section 349(3) of the Gambling Act 2005 required licensing authorities to 
consult the following when making any revision to the Statement of Principles: 
 

 The Chief of Police for the authority’s area;  
 One or more persons who appeared to the authority to represent the 

interests of persons carrying on gambling businesses in the authority’s 
area; and  

 One or more persons who appeared to the authority to represent the 
interests of persons who were likely to be affected by the exercise of 
the authority’s functions under the Act. 

 

 Bodies and organisations to be consulted were outlined in the Statement of 
Principles. Providing transparency over this list allowed additional bodies to 

Page 6

Agenda Item 2



 
Licensing and Community Safety Committee - 9 April 2024 

 
 

 
3 

 

approach the Council should they wish to be included in the next round of 
consultation. Additional organisations had been added by way of this review, 
inclusive of the Betting and Gaming Council; The Bingo Association; and 
Gamble Aware.  

 The draft revised statement would be published on the Council’s website. 

 Subsequent to the last review of the Gambling Statement of Principles, there 
had been a revision to the Gambling Commission’s Guidance to Local 
Authorities in April 2023, however this appeared to be largely in document 
formatting and thus there were no major changes in advice to consider in 
terms of the guidance as part of this review. 

 The Government published the Gambling Act review on 8th December 2020. 
Its purpose was to examine whether the 2005 Act provided the right “balance 
of regulation” in the digital age. The review noted concerns that too many 
people were “still experiencing significant harm” when gambling. There was 
therefore a need to look at whether “further protections” were needed to 
prevent the exploitation of vulnerable people. At the same time, the review 
wanted to respect the freedom of adults to choose how they spend their 
money, and the “value of a responsible industry which protects players, 
provides jobs and pays taxes”. A call for evidence on the review closed on 
31st March 2021.  

 There were around 16,000 responses to the Gambling Act review. The 
Government originally planned to issue its response by the end of 2021, but a 
Gambling White Paper was published on 27 April 2023. In a statement to the 
House of Commons, Lucy Frazer, the Secretary of State for Culture, Media 
and Sport, observed that smartphones had “transformed” gambling and the 
temptation to gamble was “everywhere”. While the “overwhelming majority” of 
gambling was done safely and within people’s means”, for some it could lead 
to addiction and “shattered families; lost jobs; foreclosed homes; jail time; 
suicide. 

 Appendix A of the report provided an indication of the main areas of review, 
which whilst not all necessarily relevant to the subject of this Gambling 
Licensing Statement of Principles Review, would be of relevance to members 
to enable a broader understanding of the Government’s current objectives 
pertaining to gambling. 
 

She referred the Committee to the following references within the White 

paper, which were of most relevance to the Council’s obligations under the 

Gambling Act 2005: 

 

 A proposal to “Bring the local authority licensing regime into line with 
that for alcohol by legislating to introduce a formal system of 
cumulative impact assessments (CIAs), when Parliamentary time 
allowed. 

 Consult on raising the cap for the fees licensing authorities could 
charge adult gaming centres, betting premises, bingo premises, 
casinos and family entertainment centres for premises licences. 
 

 The Public Protection Manager went on to detail areas of proposed change in 
the draft Statement of Licensing Principles, initially detailing the changes to 

Page 7

Agenda Item 2



 
Licensing and Community Safety Committee - 9 April 2024 

 
 

 
4 

 

the number of licensed premises in the district subsequent to the last review. 
Numbers were detailed below as follows: 
 

 Bingo establishments = 2 (previously 0). 
 Adult Gaming Centres = 2 (previously 3). 
 Family Entertainment Centres = 1. 
 Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centre Permits – 12 (previously 19). 
 Betting shops = 4 (previously 7). 
 Notification or permit for gaming machines = 131 (previously 142).  
 Club Machine Permits = 9. 

 

 The consultation was proposed to run for a period of six weeks. However, 
depending on the preparation time it could run for up to eight weeks. 

 
The Public Protection Manager then drew the Committee’s attention to the following 
amendments: 
 

 Appendix B: 

 

 Paragraph 10.11: The inclusion of a link to the “premises inspection 

templates used by the Council.  

 Section 14: Gambling Prevalence and Social Responsibility. This was 

a new section that had been included as part of the revisions to the 

“Statement of Principles” and included a link to the Gambling 

Commission’s “Licence Conditions and Codes of Practice – Gambling 

Commission (LCCP)”. 

 Section 15: Local Risk Assessments, the inclusion of a link to the 

Gambling Commission’s Social Responsibility Code (Licence 

Conditions and “Codes of Practice (LCCP) 10.1.1”. 

 Section 16: 

 

o Paragraph 16.1: General points regarding Gaming Machines, 

the inclusion of a link to the different categories of machine. 

o Paragraph 16.2: Location of together with access to such 

machines by children and young persons in licensed premises, 

the inclusion of a link to “Section C – Gaming machines in clubs 

and premises with an alcohol licence”. 

o Inclusion of a new section in relation to “Gaming in Alcohol 

Licensed Premises”.  

 

This section included links to the following documents: 

 

 “Exempt gaming in pubs – Gambling Commission”. 

 Section B – “Equal chance gaming in clubs and premises 

with an alcohol licence”. 

 Section C – “Gaming machines in clubs and premises 

with an alcohol licence – Gambling Commission”. 

Page 8

Agenda Item 2



 
Licensing and Community Safety Committee - 9 April 2024 

 
 

 
5 

 

 Section C – “Gaming machines in clubs and premises 

with an alcohol licence”. 

 Web site links to further information on Poker and gaming 

together with the “Poker and race night toolkit”. 

 

 Part B – Premises Licences: Consideration of Applications, inclusion of 

the following: 

 

o General Principles - paragraph 1: Link to “Mandatory and 

Default Conditions”. 

 

 Part C – Other Miscellaneous Issues, inclusion of the following: 

 

o Paragraph 1.22 inclusion of link: The Council also encourage 

premises to sign up to the British Amusement Catering Trade 

Association (BACTA) Voluntary “Code”. 

 

 Paragraph 4.18 of the main report made reference to the option for the 

Committee to consider a recommendation for a “No casino” resolution. Under 

section 166 of the Act a licensing authority may resolve not to issue casino 

premises licences. North Devon Council had no casinos, and had not passed 

a No Casino Resolution. The Statement of Principles currently cited that the 

Council was aware that it had the power to create a resolution and should Full 

Council decide in the future to pass such a resolution, it would update the 

Statement of Principles with details of that resolution.  

 She referenced paragraphs 4.20 to 4.29 of the report, which detailed the full 

explanation and impact of any decision to recommend a “No casino” 

resolution. Paragraph 4.27 of the report noted that whilst the number of active 

licensed premises had decreased from 148 in 2015 to 144 in 2022 it remained 

important that the Council considered whether or not to implement a “No 

casino” resolution. 

In response to a question regarding the social responsibility of employees of 
gambling establishments towards potentially vulnerable people and how they would 
ensure to regulate a person who tried to gamble beyond their means. The Public 
Protection Manager advised that people could self-exclude and that there were 
significant fines for operators who did not adhere to the rules. 
She added that if the Committee did decide to implement the “No casino” resolution, 
they would need to stipulate valid reasons for the Strategy and Resources 
Committee to consider and this would be reviewed on a three yearly basis. At the 
current time the Council could be at risk if there was a change in legislation 
regarding casino licences within the North Devon area.  
 
Following consideration of the report, the Committee agreed and discussed the 
following: 
 

 To include Age Concern Barnstaple and North Devon to the list of consultees 
under paragraph 4.2 of appendix B. 

Page 9

Agenda Item 2



 
Licensing and Community Safety Committee - 9 April 2024 

 
 

 
6 

 

 Concerns regarding the impact of casinos on the tourism industry for the area 
together with the local community.   

 
RESOLVED: 
 

a) that the draft revised Gambling Statement of Licensing Principles found within 
Appendix B (this was a tracked document highlighting the amendments made 
to the current policy) be consulted upon; 
 

b) that the “No Casino Resolution” proposed by Members be included as part of 
the Statement of Licensing Principles consultation to seek wider public 
opinion in relation to the adoption of such a resolution; and  
 

c) that the Public Protection Manager commence a six week process of public 
consultation on the above draft revised Gambling Statement of Principles and 
any potential No Casino Resolution. 

 

6.   COMMUNITY SAFETY UPDATES 
 

The Committee received an update from the Service Lead - Community Safety 
Partnership Officer/Harm Risk regarding an update form the Community Safety 
Partnership in relation to an Antisocial Behaviour meeting that had been held since 
the previous meeting of the Licensing and Community Safety Committee. 
 
The Service Lead - Community Safety Partnership Officer/Harm Risk provided the 
following update to the Committee: 
 

 Freedom Centre – Update on work undertaken together with the services they 

provided. 

 Barnstaple was no different to any other town or city across the country with 

issues such as deprivation, drug use and homelessness. 

 There were multi-discipline officers based at the Freedom Centre, which 

included housing officers, antisocial behaviour officers together with NHS 

services with a link to medical services for clients. 

 There was also a drug and alcohol misuse service in operation at the centre 

to enable people to engage with the service more easily.  

 Substance abuse was identified as the main cause of homelessness. 

 There were day centre volunteers who provided clients with warm meals and 

support in a caring environment. 

 The centre was seen as a gateway to services allowing clients to have a hot 

meal and drink whilst offering support mechanisms and services to help them 

with their addictions together with accommodation. Representatives from the 

Job Centre also visited the centre on a weekly basis to encourage clients to 

seek eventual employment. 

 The sleeping pods, which were located at the Salvation Army and Hardaway 

Head car parks were seen as the first step to getting people into 

accommodation. 

Page 10

Agenda Item 2



 
Licensing and Community Safety Committee - 9 April 2024 

 
 

 
7 

 

 There were also three additional sleeping pods located at the Freedom Centre 

to cater for the more vulnerable of clients. 

 There was on site security present in the building overnight, w which ensured 

the safety of clients and employees whilst providing a caring and supportive 

function within the centre. 

 The CCTV service was a vital tool for Barnstaple and could be utilised for 

evidence gathering and combined with the Street Marshalls had reduced 

antisocial behaviour by 15% over the previous 12 months.  

 Due to the ongoing conflict in Afghanistan there had been an impact upon the 

supply route for the importation of illegal drugs, which was currently blocked. 

As a result, gangs were now turning their attention to the use of synthetic 

drugs as a substitute. However, these modified drugs were often much 

stronger and in some cases could even lead to death. 

 At the most recent meeting of the Community Safety Partnership Steering 

Group, there was an offer from various groups to hold a workshop to discuss 

issues within Barnstaple and the wider North Devon. The purpose of the 

meeting would be to discuss how all parties could work together to make 

Barnstaple feel safer for the general public. As part of this workshop, the 

invitation would be extended to the Licensing and Community Safety 

Committee to seek their input. 

 The Chair of the Committee had attended the meeting of the steering group 

where detox beds were discussed and would be speaking with the 

organisations with regards to the work that they undertook and would keep 

the Committee updated on progress. 

 The Service Lead - Community Safety Partnership Officer/Harm Risk added 

that partnership volunteers were really keen to be involved in the process and 

further information would be presented to the Committee in the coming 

months. 

Following the update, Members agreed the following: 
 

 That the Active Wellbeing team based in Ilfracombe be invited to take part in 

the workshop. 

 Acknowledged the important work of the Freedom Centre and the services 

that it provided. 

 The unfortunate closure of the Link Centres and the involvement of the 

Freedom Centre with the same clients. 

 The role of elected members in spreading the message with regards to the 

work of the Freedom Centre to the wider public through sharing of posts on 

social media. 

 The multitude of issues that required addressing when working with clients 

with mental health issues together with the importance of centrally locating all 

of the organisations involved in one place at the Freedom Centre. 

 That the Chair of the Committee be involved in the work of the project. 

 
RESOLVED, that the update from the Service Lead - Community Safety Partnership 
Officer/Harm Risk be noted. 

Page 11

Agenda Item 2



 
Licensing and Community Safety Committee - 9 April 2024 

 
 

 
8 

 

7.   ALTERNATIVE ARRANGEMENTS FOR THE APPOINTMENT OF 
SUB-COMMITTEES 
 

The Committee considered a report by the Head of Governance, (circulated 
previously) regarding the Alternative Arrangements for the Appointment of Sub-
Committees 2024.  
 
The Corporate and Community Services Officer explained that the report was 
considered on an annual basis following the meeting of Annual Council.  
 
She advised that the Sub-Committees for the forthcoming year 2024/25 had been 
appointed based on how they had operated over the previous 12 months. However, 
Members were welcome to appoint them as they were for 2023/24 if that was their 
preference.  
 
She highlighted the following points to the Committee:  
 

 That the allocation of members to the Sub-Committees could change and that 

Chairs were not appointed ahead of the hearing being arranged.  

 Substitute members were no longer designated, if the need for a substitute 

arose the hearing would be adjourned or continue, with the applicants 

permission, with just two members.  

 If a Member of a Sub-Committee found themselves to have a conflict of 

interest then they should notify the Corporate and Community Services officer 

as soon as possible so an alternative Member could be appointed to sit on the 

Sub-Committee.  

 
The Committee discussed the gender balance of the Sub-Committees, which had 
been highlighted by previous Committees in the preceding years. 
 
The Corporate and Community Services officer confirmed that gender balance had 
been taken into consideration in the appointment of the Sub-Committees for 
2024/25.  
 
In response to a question regarding the seeking of a substitute member to sit on a 
Sub-Committee that was gender balanced. The Corporate and Community Services 
officer advised that the requirement was maintained where possible. However, she 
acknowledged that it was often very difficult to meet this requirement with the 
restricted availability of working members and that as a result it was not always 
possible. 
 
RESOLVED that:  
 

(a) Five Sub-Committees, each with three Members with the delegated powers 

as detailed in Appendix A of this report be appointed;  

 

(b) Alternative arrangements be made for the appointment of Members of the 

Sub-Committees of the Licensing and Community Safety Committee in 

Page 12

Agenda Item 2



 
Licensing and Community Safety Committee - 9 April 2024 

 
 

 
9 

 

accordance with the powers set out in S17 of the Housing and Local 

Government Act 1989 and the provisions of the Local Government 

(Committees and Political Groups) Regulations 1990;  

 

(c) The alternative arrangements provide that the membership of the Sub-

Committees of the Licensing and Community Safety Committee be not 

politically balanced;  

 

(d) Members be appointed to the Sub-Committees as detailed in Appendix A of 

the report;  

 

(e) A Member be selected by Corporate and Community Services to act as a 

Substitute Member for each Sub-Committee meeting should the need arise 

for a Substitute; and  

 

(f) The appointed Sub-Committees be restricted in that they may not further 

delegate any of their powers to an Officer of the Council or any other body. 

 
  

 

 
Chair 
The meeting ended at 11.46 am 
 
NOTE: These minutes will be confirmed as a correct record at the next meeting of 
the Committee. 
 

Page 13

Agenda Item 2



This page is intentionally left blank



SCHEME drawn by scale

SB NTS

date O.S.Ref

DRAWING 06-Dec-2023 255874,133032

drawing number

Meg Booth - Director of Climate

Change, Environment and Transport

TRAFFIC ORDERS  & POLICY TEAM

DEVON COUNTY COUNCIL, HIGHWAY

MANAGEMENT, LUCOMBE HOUSE, COUNTY

HALL, TOPSHAM ROAD, EXETER, EX2 4QD

Telephone  0345 155 1004

ENV5910/01 (A)

NORTH DEVON TAXI RANK REVIEW

BOUTPORT STREET (LOWER), BARNSTAPLE

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved. 100019783. 2023

Do not scale from this drawing in either hard or electronic
format. No responsibility is accepted where this drawing
is used in circumstances other than that for which it was
originally prepared and issued.

KEY:

Proposed No Stopping At Any Time Except Taxis

Existing No Waiting At Any Time Except Taxis

Existing No Waiting At Any Time

P
age 15

A
genda Item

 6



SCHEME drawn by scale

SB NTS

date O.S.Ref

DRAWING 12-Dec-2023 255914,133127

drawing number

Meg Booth - Director of Climate

Change, Environment and Transport

TRAFFIC ORDERS  & POLICY TEAM

DEVON COUNTY COUNCIL, HIGHWAY

MANAGEMENT, LUCOMBE HOUSE, COUNTY

HALL, TOPSHAM ROAD, EXETER, EX2 4QD

Telephone  0345 155 1004

ENV5910/02 (A)

NORTH DEVON TAXI RANK REVIEW

BOUTPORT STREET (MID), BARNSTAPLE

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved. 100019783. 2023

Do not scale from this drawing in either hard or electronic
format. No responsibility is accepted where this drawing
is used in circumstances other than that for which it was
originally prepared and issued.

KEY:

Existing No Waiting At Any Time Except Taxis

Existing No Waiting At Any Time

Existing Loading Only At Any Time

P
age 16

A
genda Item

 6



SCHEME drawn by scale

SB NTS

date O.S.Ref

DRAWING 06-Dec-2023 255870,133257

drawing number

Meg Booth - Director of Climate

Change, Environment and Transport

TRAFFIC ORDERS  & POLICY TEAM

DEVON COUNTY COUNCIL, HIGHWAY

MANAGEMENT, LUCOMBE HOUSE, COUNTY

HALL, TOPSHAM ROAD, EXETER, EX2 4QD

Telephone  0345 155 1004

ENV5910/03 (A)

NORTH DEVON TAXI RANK REVIEW

BUTCHERS ROW, BARNSTAPLE

Do not scale from this drawing in either hard or
electronic format. No responsibility is accepted where
this drawing is used in circumstances other than that for

KEY:

Proposed No Stopping 6pm-4am Except Taxis

Proposed Goods Vehicles Loading Only 8am-6pm

Existing No Waiting 6pm-4am Except Taxis

Existing No Waiting At Any Time

Existing No Waiting 8am-6pm

Existing Goods Vehicles Loading Only Mon-Sat 8am-6pm

Existing Disabled Badge Holders Only 8am-6pm Maximum Stay 3 Hours

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved. 100019783. 2023

P
age 17

A
genda Item

 6



SCHEME drawn by scale

SB NTS

date O.S.Ref

DRAWING 06-Dec-2023 255720,133146

drawing number

ENV5910/04 (A)

Meg Booth - Director of Climate

Change, Environment and Transport CASTLE STREET, BARNSTAPLE
TRAFFIC ORDERS  & POLICY TEAM

DEVON COUNTY COUNCIL, HIGHWAY

MANAGEMENT, LUCOMBE HOUSE, COUNTY

HALL, TOPSHAM ROAD, EXETER, EX2 4QD

Telephone  0345 155 1004 NORTH DEVON TAXI RANK REVIEW

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved. 100019783. 2023

Do not scale from this drawing in either hard or
electronic format. No responsibility is accepted where
this drawing is used in circumstances other than that for
which it was originally prepared and issued.

KEY:

Proposed No Stopping At Any Time Except Taxis

Existing No Waiting At Any Time Except Taxis

Existing No Waiting At Any Time

Existing No Loading At Any Time

Existing No Loading Mon-Sat 8-9.30am - 4.30-6pm

Existing Loading Only At Any Time

Relocate Taxi rank to Castle street
and reinstate No Waiting At Any Time
restrictionP

age 18

A
genda Item

 6



SCHEME drawn by scale

SB NTS

date O.S.Ref

DRAWING 12-Dec-2023 255676,133239

drawing number

ENV5910/05 (A)

Meg Booth - Director of Climate

Change, Environment and Transport HOLLAND STREET, BARNSTAPLE
TRAFFIC ORDERS  & POLICY TEAM

DEVON COUNTY COUNCIL, HIGHWAY

MANAGEMENT, LUCOMBE HOUSE, COUNTY

HALL, TOPSHAM ROAD, EXETER, EX2 4QD

Telephone  0345 155 1004 NORTH DEVON TAXI RANK REVIEW

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved. 100019783.
2023

Do not scale from this drawing in either hard or
electronic format. No responsibility is accepted where
this drawing is used in circumstances other than that for
which it was originally prepared and issued.

KEY:

No Loading At Any Time

Existing No Waiting At Any Time Except Taxis

Existing No Waiting 8am-6pm

Existing No Waiting At Any Time

Existing No Loading At Any Time

Remove Taxi rank and
replace with No Loading
At Any Time

CAR PARK

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 6



SCHEME drawn by scale

SB NTS

date O.S.Ref

DRAWING 06-Dec-2023 256022,133191

drawing number

Meg Booth - Director of Climate

Change, Environment and Transport

TRAFFIC ORDERS  & POLICY TEAM

DEVON COUNTY COUNCIL, HIGHWAY

MANAGEMENT, LUCOMBE HOUSE, COUNTY

HALL, TOPSHAM ROAD, EXETER, EX2 4QD

Telephone  0345 155 1004

ENV5910/06 (A)

NORTH DEVON TAXI RANK REVIEW

MALLETTS LANE, BARNSTAPLE

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved. 100019783. 2023

Do not scale from this drawing in either hard or electronic
format. No responsibility is accepted where this drawing
is used in circumstances other than that for which it was
originally prepared and issued.

KEY:

Proposed No Stopping At Any Time Except Taxis

Existing No Waiting At Any Time Except Taxis

Existing No Waiting At Any Time

P
age 20

A
genda Item

 6



SCHEME drawn by scale

SB NTS

date O.S.Ref

DRAWING 06-Dec-2023 256026,133162

drawing number

ENV5910/07 (A)

Meg Booth - Director of Climate

Change, Environment and Transport QUEEN STREET (NORTH), BARNSTAPLE
TRAFFIC ORDERS  & POLICY TEAM

DEVON COUNTY COUNCIL, HIGHWAY

MANAGEMENT, LUCOMBE HOUSE, COUNTY

HALL, TOPSHAM ROAD, EXETER, EX2 4QD

Telephone  0345 155 1004 NORTH DEVON TAXI RANK REVIEW

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved. 100019783. 2023

Do not scale from this drawing in either hard or electronic
format. No responsibility is accepted where this drawing
is used in circumstances other than that for which it was
originally prepared and issued.

KEY:

Proposed No Stopping At Any Time Except Taxis 7pm-7am

Proposed Loading Only 7am-7pm

Existing No Waiting At Any Time Except Taxis

Existing No Waiting At Any Time

P
age 21

A
genda Item

 6



SCHEME drawn by scale

SB NTS

date O.S.Ref

DRAWING 12-Dec-2023 256063,133082

drawing number

ENV5910/08 (C)

Meg Booth - Director of Climate

Change, Environment and Transport QUEEN STREET (SOUTH), BARNSTAPLE
TRAFFIC ORDERS  & POLICY TEAM

DEVON COUNTY COUNCIL, HIGHWAY

MANAGEMENT, LUCOMBE HOUSE, COUNTY

HALL, TOPSHAM ROAD, EXETER, EX2 4QD

Telephone  0345 155 1004 NORTH DEVON TAXI RANK REVIEW

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved. 100019783. 2023

Do not scale from this drawing in either hard or
electronic format. No responsibility is accepted where
this drawing is used in circumstances other than that for
which it was originally prepared and issued.

KEY:

Existing Bus Stop Clearway

Existing No Waiting 7pm-midnight
and midnight-7am except taxis

Existing No Waiting At Any Time

Existing Limited Waiting 10 Minutes
No Return Within 10 Minutes

Remove Taxi rank and reistate the No
Waiting At Any Time restriction

P
age 22

A
genda Item

 6



SCHEME drawn by scale

SB NTS

date O.S.Ref

DRAWING 06-Dec-2023 255684,133308

drawing number

Meg Booth - Director of Climate

Change, Environment and Transport

TRAFFIC ORDERS  & POLICY TEAM

DEVON COUNTY COUNCIL, HIGHWAY

MANAGEMENT, LUCOMBE HOUSE, COUNTY

HALL, TOPSHAM ROAD, EXETER, EX2 4QD

Telephone  0345 155 1004

ENV5910/09 (A)

NORTH DEVON TAXI RANK REVIEW

TULY STREET, BARNSTAPLE

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved. 100019783.
2023

Do not scale from this drawing in either hard or
electronic format. No responsibility is accepted where
this drawing is used in circumstances other than that for
which it was originally prepared and issued.

KEY:

Proposed No Stopping At Any Time Except Taxis

Existing No Waiting At Any Time Except Taxis

Existing No Waiting 8am-6pm

Existing No Waiting At Any Time

Existing No Loading At Any Time

Existing Goods Vehicle Loading Only 8am-6pm

P
age 23

A
genda Item

 6



SCHEME drawn by scale

SB NTS

date O.S.Ref

DRAWING 06-Dec-2023 248664,136579

drawing number

ENV5910/10 (A)

Meg Booth - Director of Climate

Change, Environment and Transport CAR PARK OFF CAEN STREET, BRAUNTON
TRAFFIC ORDERS  & POLICY TEAM

DEVON COUNTY COUNCIL, HIGHWAY

MANAGEMENT, LUCOMBE HOUSE, COUNTY

HALL, TOPSHAM ROAD, EXETER, EX2 4QD

Telephone  0345 155 1004 NORTH DEVON TAXI RANK REVIEW

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved. 100019783. 2023

Do not scale from this drawing in either hard or
electronic format. No responsibility is accepted where
this drawing is used in circumstances other than that for
which it was originally prepared and issued.

KEY:

Existing No Waiting At Any Time Except Taxis

Existing No Waiting At Any Time

Proposed to remove the taxi rank and reinstate
the No Waiting At Any Time restrictions

P
age 24

A
genda Item

 6



SCHEME drawn by scale

SB NTS

date O.S.Ref

DRAWING 06-Dec-2023 248833,136462

drawing number

ENV5910/11 (A)

Meg Booth - Director of Climate

Change, Environment and Transport EXETER ROAD, BRAUNTON
TRAFFIC ORDERS  & POLICY TEAM

DEVON COUNTY COUNCIL, HIGHWAY

MANAGEMENT, LUCOMBE HOUSE, COUNTY

HALL, TOPSHAM ROAD, EXETER, EX2 4QD

Telephone  0345 155 1004 NORTH DEVON TAXI RANK REVIEW

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved. 100019783.
2023

Do not scale from this drawing in either hard or
electronic format. No responsibility is accepted where
this drawing is used in circumstances other than that for
which it was originally prepared and issued.

KEY:
Proposed No Stopping At Any Time Except Taxis

Proposed Disabled Badge Holders Only At Any Time

Existing No Waiting At Any Time Except Taxis

Existing No Waiting At Any Time

Existing Limited Waiting 9am-6pm 1 Hour No Return Within 2 Hours

Existing Disabled Badge Holders Only At Any Time

Existing Bus Stop Clearway

This is currently being considered in conjunction
with the Pay & Display proposals for Braunton

P
age 25

A
genda Item

 6



SCHEME drawn by scale

SB NTS

date O.S.Ref

DRAWING 06/12/2023 251612,147332

drawing number

ENV5910/12 (A)

Meg Booth - Director of Climate

Change, Environment and Transport MARLBOROUGH ROAD, ILFRACOMBE
TRAFFIC ORDERS  & POLICY TEAM

DEVON COUNTY COUNCIL, HIGHWAY

MANAGEMENT, LUCOMBE HOUSE, COUNTY

HALL, TOPSHAM ROAD, EXETER, EX2 4QD

Telephone  0345 155 1004 NORTH DEVON TAXI RANK REVIEW

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved. 100019783.
2023

Do not scale from this drawing in either hard or
electronic format. No responsibility is accepted where
this drawing is used in circumstances other than that for
which it was originally prepared and issued.

KEY:

Proposed No Stopping At Any Time Except Taxis

Proposed Limited Waiting Mon-Sat 10am-6pm
1 Hour No Return Within 1 Hour

Existing No Waiting At Any Time Except Taxis

Existing No Waiting Mon-Fri 8am-6pm

Existing No Waiting At Any Time

Existing Limited Waiting Mon-Sat 10am-6pm
1 Hour No Return Within 1 Hour

HIGHFIELD ROAD

P
age 26

A
genda Item

 6



SCHEME drawn by scale

SB NTS

date O.S.Ref

DRAWING 06-Dec-2023 252082,147799

drawing number

Meg Booth - Director of Climate

Change, Environment and Transport

TRAFFIC ORDERS  & POLICY TEAM

DEVON COUNTY COUNCIL, HIGHWAY

MANAGEMENT, LUCOMBE HOUSE, COUNTY

HALL, TOPSHAM ROAD, EXETER, EX2 4QD

Telephone  0345 155 1004

ENV5910/13 (A)

NORTH DEVON TAXI RANK REVIEW

MILL HEAD, ILFRACOMBE

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved. 100019783.
2023

Do not scale from this drawing in either hard or
electronic format. No responsibility is accepted where
this drawing is used in circumstances other than that for
which it was originally prepared and issued.

KEY:

Proposed No Stopping At Any Time Except Taxis

Proposed Pay and Display (Tariff Ilfracombe B) 10am-6pm
Mon-Sat

Proposed No Waiting At Any Time

Existing No Waiting At Any Time Except Taxis

Existing No Waiting 10am-6pm between 15 Mar and 31 Oct

Existing No Waiting At Any Time

Existing No Loading At Any Time

Existing Bus Stand

Pay and Display (Tariff Ilfracombe
B) 10am-6pm

10am-6pm Mon-Sat inc Bank Hols
1 st May – 30th September 1
hour- £1.00
2 hour- £2.00

10am-6pm Mon-Sat inc Bank
Hols* 1 st Oct – 30th April
2 hours - £1.00
4 hours- £2.00

The Admiral
Collingwood

P
age 27

A
genda Item

 6



SCHEME drawn by scale

SB NTS

date O.S.Ref

DRAWING 06/12/2023 251904,147609

drawing number

Meg Booth - Director of Climate

Change, Environment and Transport

TRAFFIC ORDERS  & POLICY TEAM

DEVON COUNTY COUNCIL, HIGHWAY

MANAGEMENT, LUCOMBE HOUSE, COUNTY

HALL, TOPSHAM ROAD, EXETER, EX2 4QD

Telephone  0345 155 1004

ENV5910/14 (A)

NORTH DEVON TAXI RANK REVIEW

OXFORD GROVE, ILFRACOMBE

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved. 100019783.
2023

Do not scale from this drawing in either hard or
electronic format. No responsibility is accepted where
this drawing is used in circumstances other than that for
which it was originally prepared and issued.

KEY:

Proposed No Stopping At Any Time Except Taxis

Existing No Waiting At Any Time Except Taxis

Existing No Waiting At Any Time

Existing Limited Waiting Mon-Sat 10am-6pm
1 Hour No Return Within 1 Hour

P
age 28

A
genda Item

 6



SCHEME drawn by scale

SB NTS

date O.S.Ref

DRAWING 06-Dec-2023 252304,147841

drawing number

Meg Booth - Director of Climate

Change, Environment and Transport

TRAFFIC ORDERS  & POLICY TEAM

DEVON COUNTY COUNCIL, HIGHWAY

MANAGEMENT, LUCOMBE HOUSE, COUNTY

HALL, TOPSHAM ROAD, EXETER, EX2 4QD

Telephone  0345 155 1004

ENV5910/15 (A)

NORTH DEVON TAXI RANK REVIEW

THE QUAY, ILFRACOMBE

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved. 100019783.
2023

Do not scale from this drawing in either hard or
electronic format. No responsibility is accepted where
this drawing is used in circumstances other than that for
which it was originally prepared and issued.

KEY:

Proposed No Stopping At Any Time Except Taxis

Existing No Waiting At Any Time Except Taxis

Existing No Waiting 10am-6pm between 15 Mar and 31 Oct

Existing No Waiting At Any Time

P
age 29

A
genda Item

 6



SCHEME drawn by scale

SB NTS

date O.S.Ref

DRAWING 06-Dec-2023 272219,149662

drawing number

Meg Booth - Director of Climate

Change, Environment and Transport

TRAFFIC ORDERS  & POLICY TEAM

DEVON COUNTY COUNCIL, HIGHWAY

MANAGEMENT, LUCOMBE HOUSE, COUNTY

HALL, TOPSHAM ROAD, EXETER, EX2 4QD

Telephone  0345 155 1004

ENV5910/16 (A)

NORTH DEVON TAXI RANK REVIEW

THE ESPLANADE, LYNMOUTH

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved. 100019783.
2023

Do not scale from this drawing in either hard or
electronic format. No responsibility is accepted where
this drawing is used in circumstances other than that for
which it was originally prepared and issued.

KEY:

Proposed No Stopping At Any Time Except Taxis

Existing No Waiting At Any Time Except Taxis

Existing No Waiting At Any Time

Existing No Waiting 10am-6pm Good Friday to 31 October

Existing Limited Waiting Good Friday to 31 October
10am-6pm 2 Hours No Return Within 4 Hours

P
age 30

A
genda Item

 6



SCHEME drawn by scale

SB NTS

date O.S.Ref

DRAWING 06-Dec-2023 271901,149496

drawing number

Meg Booth - Director of Climate

Change, Environment and Transport

TRAFFIC ORDERS  & POLICY TEAM

DEVON COUNTY COUNCIL, HIGHWAY

MANAGEMENT, LUCOMBE HOUSE, COUNTY

HALL, TOPSHAM ROAD, EXETER, EX2 4QD

Telephone  0345 155 1004

ENV5910/17 (A)

NORTH DEVON TAXI RANK REVIEW

LEE ROAD, LYNTON

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved. 100019783.
2023

Do not scale from this drawing in either hard or
electronic format. No responsibility is accepted where
this drawing is used in circumstances other than that for
which it was originally prepared and issued.

KEY:

Proposed No Stopping At Any Time Except Taxis

Existing No Waiting At Any Time Except Taxis

Existing No Waiting At Any Time

Existing Limited Waiting Good Friday to 31 October
10am-6pm 2 Hours No Return Within 4 Hours

P
age 31

A
genda Item

 6



SCHEME drawn by scale

SB NTS

date O.S.Ref

DRAWING 06-Dec-2023 271395,125846

drawing number

Meg Booth - Director of Climate

Change, Environment and Transport

TRAFFIC ORDERS  & POLICY TEAM

DEVON COUNTY COUNCIL, HIGHWAY

MANAGEMENT, LUCOMBE HOUSE, COUNTY

HALL, TOPSHAM ROAD, EXETER, EX2 4QD

Telephone  0345 155 1004

ENV5910/18 (A)

NORTH DEVON TAXI RANK REVIEW

BROAD STREET, SOUTH MOLTON

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved. 100019783.
2023

Do not scale from this drawing in either hard or
electronic format. No responsibility is accepted where
this drawing is used in circumstances other than that for
which it was originally prepared and issued.

KEY:

Proposed No Stopping At Any Time Except Taxis

Existing No Waiting At Any Time Except Taxis

Existing No Waiting At Any Time

Existing No Loading At Any Time

Existing Limited Waiting Mon-Sat 8am-6pm
30 Minutes No Return Within 30 Minutes

ZEBRA
CROSSING

P
age 32

A
genda Item

 6



SCHEME drawn by scale

SB NTS

date O.S.Ref

DRAWING 12-Dec-2023 245900,143751

drawing number

Meg Booth - Director of Climate

Change, Environment and Transport

TRAFFIC ORDERS  & POLICY TEAM

DEVON COUNTY COUNCIL, HIGHWAY

MANAGEMENT, LUCOMBE HOUSE, COUNTY

HALL, TOPSHAM ROAD, EXETER, EX2 4QD

Telephone  0345 155 1004

ENV5910/19 (A)

NORTH DEVON TAXI RANK REVIEW

BARTON ROAD, WOOLACOMBE

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved. 100019783.
2023

Do not scale from this drawing in either hard or
electronic format. No responsibility is accepted where
this drawing is used in circumstances other than that for
which it was originally prepared and issued.

KEY:

Existing No Waiting Except Taxis 10pm-6am

Existing No Waiting At Any Time

Existing No Waiting 6am-10pm

Existing Limited Waiting  10am-6pm between
15 Mar and 31 Oct 1 Hour No Return Within 2 Hours

P
age 33

A
genda Item

 6



SCHEME drawn by scale

SB NTS

date O.S.Ref

DRAWING 06-Dec-2023 245735,143821

drawing number

Meg Booth - Director of Climate

Change, Environment and Transport

TRAFFIC ORDERS  & POLICY TEAM

DEVON COUNTY COUNCIL, HIGHWAY

MANAGEMENT, LUCOMBE HOUSE, COUNTY

HALL, TOPSHAM ROAD, EXETER, EX2 4QD

Telephone  0345 155 1004

ENV5910/20 (A)

NORTH DEVON TAXI RANK REVIEW

THE ESPLANADE, WOOLACOMBE

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved. 100019783.
2023

Do not scale from this drawing in either hard or
electronic format. No responsibility is accepted where
this drawing is used in circumstances other than that for
which it was originally prepared and issued.

KEY:

Proposed No Stopping At Any Time Except Taxis

Existing No Waiting At Any Time Except Taxis

Existing No Waiting At Any Time

Existing No Waiting Midnight-6am

Existing Limited Waiting  8am-9pm between
15 Mar and 31 Oct 20 Minutes No Return Within 2 Hours

P
age 34

A
genda Item

 6


	Agenda
	2 To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 9 April 2024
	6 Taxi Rank Review
	ENV5910-01(A) 5910  Plan Boutport Street(LOWER), Barnstaple new (SS5533).pdf (p.1)
	ENV5910-02(A) 5910  Plan Boutport Street(Mid), Barnstaple (SS5533).pdf (p.2)
	ENV5910-03(A) 5910  Plan Butchers Row, Barnstaple (SS5533).pdf (p.3)
	ENV5910-04(A) 5910  Plan Cross Street, Barnstaple (SS5533).pdf (p.4)
	ENV5910-05(A) 5910  Plan Holland Street, Barnstaple NEW (SS5533).pdf (p.5)
	ENV5910-06(A) 5910  Plan Malletts Lane, Barnstaple (SS5633).pdf (p.6)
	ENV5910-07(A) 5910  Plan Queen Street (NORTH), Barnstaple new (SS5633).pdf (p.7)
	ENV5910-08(C) 5910  Plan Queen Street (SOUTH), Barnstaple (SS5633).pdf (p.8)
	ENV5910-09(A) 5910  Plan Tuly Street, Barnstaple (SS5533).pdf (p.9)
	ENV5910-10(A) 59  Plan Car Park off Caen Street, Braunton new (SS4836).pdf (p.10)
	ENV5910-11(A) 5910  Plan Exeter Road, Braunton (SS4836).pdf (p.11)
	ENV5910-12(A) 5910  Plan Marlborough Road, Ilfracombe (SS5147).pdf (p.12)
	ENV5910-13(A) 5910  Plan Mill Head, Ilfracombe NEW (SS5247).pdf (p.13)
	ENV5910-14(A) 5910  Plan Oxford Grove, Ilfracombe (SS5147).pdf (p.14)
	ENV5910-15(A) 5910  Plan The Quay Ilfracombe (SS5247).pdf (p.15)
	ENV5910-16(A) 5910  Plan The Esplanade, Lynmouth (SS7249).pdf (p.16)
	ENV5910-17(A) 5910  Plan Lee Road, Lynton (SS7149).pdf (p.17)
	ENV5910-18(A) 5910  Plan Broad Street, South Molton (SS7125).pdf (p.18)
	ENV5910-19(A) 5910  Plan Barton Road, Woolacombe (SS4543).pdf (p.19)
	ENV5910-20(A) 5910  Plan The Esplanade, Woolacombe (SS4543).pdf (p.20)


